
REQUEST FOR SEALED BIDS 
BALLPARK SCOREBOARD  

FOR THE CITY OF STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 
(PUR 18-031) 

ADDENDUM No. 1 
 
DATE: 1/17/19 
 
To All Potential Bidders: 
 
A.  This Addendum shall be considered part of the bid documents for the above-mentioned project 
as though it had been issued at the same time and shall be incorporated integrally therewith.  Where 
provisions of the following supplementary data differ from those of the original bid documents, this 
Amendment shall govern and take precedence. BIDDERS MUST SIGN THE ADDENDUM AND 
SUBMIT IT WITH THEIR BIDS. 
 
B.  Bidders are hereby notified that they shall make any necessary adjustments in their estimates 
as a result of this Addendum.  It will be construed that each bidder's proposal is submitted with full 
knowledge of all modifications and supplemental data specified herein. 

 
CLARIFICATIONS-The following items are being added to the scope of work 
(Section 2 of the Bid Document): 
 

 A new attachment containing Exhibits A1-D3 has been added to the City’s Bidflash 
page with additional details. See the Plans, Attachments & Agendas section at: 
http://www.stocktongov.com/bfDocs/PUR_18-031_Exhibits%20Scoreboard.pdf  
 

 Contractors will be responsible for additional power if needed for either scoreboard 
(Main or Auxiliary).  Please reference the Exhibits C-1 through C-3 for current 
power available and locations (found under Plans, Attachments & Agendas). 
 

 The Auxiliary score board will have both end sections removed permanently, 
including the clock, as part of this project.  The selected contractor will be 
responsible for removal of the extra sections and any bracing/section support for 
those areas. 
 

 Pixel pitch for both displays is defined as 15HD, a like quality substitute ranging 
from 12mm to 16mm pixel pitch will be acceptable. 
 

 The size of the Auxiliary board has been changed.  Page 17, Bid to be Submitted, 
Section A, One (1) Outdoor Auxiliary LED Video Display, first bullet has been 
changed to the following: Approximate Active Area: 11 feet high x 59 feet wide 
 

 The following statement is added to Bid Document Section 2.1 Scope of Services: 
Equal items will be considered, provided the offer clearly describes the 
merchandise.  Offers for equal items shall state brand and number or level of 
quality.  The sole determination of the City as to what items are equal shall be final 
and conclusive. 



 
THE CITY’S RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS SUBMITTED ARE IN BLUE. 
 
Questions - 
 
1. The spec calls specifically for an "HD15" product, which is only manufactured by 

Daktronics. It is a virtual pixel product enhanced with marketing spin, but has an 
accurate measurement of approximately 21.5mm. Because of that, would I be 
allowed to submit a proposal for a true 20mm, a more dense pixel product as a 
Base bid, followed by a true 16mm as a Voluntary Alternate? 
There is no preference to any proprietary model, simply a requirement of quality.  
A like product with a pixel pitch ranging between 12mm and 16mm will be 
accepted. See clarification section above. 

 
2.  The Ports season starts in April; the award date is slated for late February. Is the 

expectation to award, complete a contract, demo, install, fire, and test all before 
the Ports first scheduled home game? 
The successful bidder will have 90 days from the date of contract award, 
anticipated in late February 2019, to complete the installation.  Given the 
anticipated contract award date, it is anticipated that the scoreboard will be 
installed and completely operational by late May, 2019. 

 
3. How old is the existing scoreboard? 

The scoreboard was installed in 2005. 
 
4. Will the new scoreboard need a new video switcher/clip board? 

Refer to Required Components listed in the Bid to be Submitted Section. 
 
5. Are there cameras currently that must be integrated with the new signage 

components?   
There are no existing cameras. 

 
6. Is it required to only quote a 15HD pixel pitch LED sign? 

See answer to question 1 and the clarification section above. 
 
7. Will the entire scoreboard be replaced, including the Coors Light advertisement? 

The new scoreboard will be a full video display therefore the existing Coors Light 
advertisement will be removed.  See attached Exhibit A-1. 

 
8. Are the blade edge signs on the existing scoreboard part of the demo?  Will they 

need to be protected? 
Replacement and/or alteration of the blade sides of the board framing structure 
are is not part of the bid, therefore the contractor will be responsible for protection 
to maintain the current condition of the blade/banner edge of the sign framing.  See 
Exhibit A-1. 

 
9. Will there be a video and audio system? 



Please refer to all equipment components listed within the bid document under 
“Bid to be Submitted”. 

 
10. Is painting and priming of the scoreboard structure required for the project? 

Painting and priming are not part of the project. 
 
11. Will the flag poles be left up on the scoreboard structure? 

Yes.  See Exhibit A-1. 
 
12. On the secondary scoreboard, will the clock stay? Will there be LED visuals on the 

bottom of the clock? 
No, both small sections on each side will be removed, permanently, including the 
clock and back support.  The remaining stagnant advertisement signage and digital 
board area will be replaced with one LED video display, approximately 59’ by 11’.  
The board will be capable of dividing into not less than four section using content 
management software as specified in the “Bid to be Submitted” section of the bid 
document. See Exhibit B-1. 

 
13. On the secondary scoreboard, will the left-hand side be replaced with a new LED 

display? 
See answer # 12.  Also see Exhibit B-1. 

 
14. Is there enough power to handle the first and second board? 

Refer to Exhibit C-1, 2, and 3 for all current power availability and proximity.  Any 
additional power required beyond what is currently present will be the responsibility 
of the selected contractor.  Costs associated with any additional power needs must 
be included in bid pricing.  All applicable permits are the responsibility of the 
selected contractor. 

 
15. Primary power requirements are not noted on bid. 

See the answer to question #14. 
 
16. Will there be a problem with enclosures and operation of lifts on the main and 

secondary scoreboard?  
Scissor man-lift and/or small boom lift will work to reach both boards and will be 
acceptable for use in the needed areas. 

 
17. Is specialty crane equipment acceptable to use? 

If the weight limits are ok, then it is permitted.  Contractor will be responsible for 
any damage to concrete decking caused by excessive weight loads.  See answer 
#16. 

 
18. Will there be access to the adjacent property behind the scoreboard? 

Yes, it will be scheduled after the contract is awarded. 
 
19. Is the goal to have the scoreboard up before the season begins? 

See answer #2. 



 
20. When is the first home game of the season? 

Thursday, April 4, 2019. 
 
21. What is the earthquake law? 

It is unclear what is meant by “earthquake law”. 
 
22.  Please provide the weight capacity of the mesignee (mezzanine) for boom lifts.   

See answer to #16  
 
23. Where are the sponsor ad panels located?  What type of static ad panels and are 

they back lit?, What are the sizes of the sponsor ad panels? 
Static ad boards on or around both of the LED video scoreboards (Main and 
Auxiliary) will be removed permanently as part of this project.  See Exhibits A-1 
and B-1.  

 
24. What is the size of the conduit run for the fiber from the control room to the sign 

and is there space available?  
See Exhibits D-1, 2, and 3. 

 
25. Due to this being in the middle of season and the need for a scoreboard, do you 

have an interim plan in place during the process of the upgrade? 
An installation schedule will be mutually agreed upon by the City and successful 
bidder.  It is expected that scheduling will be coordinated with regard to home 
games and that removal of the existing scoreboard will occur immediately prior to 
the installation of the new scoreboard, with minimal downtime. 

 
26. Does the pixel pitch have to be 15HD? 

See the answer to question # 1. 
 
27. We are assuming the 69' long display is attached in right field to an existing 

structure.  Please confirm.  Also, at that location please confirm what existing items 
are to be removed.  
The Auxiliary scoreboard sizing has been changed to approximately 11 feet high 
by 59 feet long.  See Exhibit B-1 for a diagram of the areas to be replaced and 
those to be removed permanently. 

 
28.  The existing service 100 amps is not large enough to power the new video 

board.  Who is responsible for the upgrade of the larger service to power the new 
board? 
See answer to question # 14. 

 
29. If a new service upgrade is available, can we install a 200 amp service for the new 

board?  
See answer to #14. 

 
30. What is the number of intercom users required and where will they be located?   



Intercoms are included in the Add Alternate Section, only, along with the camera 
request.  Number of users would be based on 1 for control room plus one for each 
camera. 

 
31. Will the intercoms be wired or wireless? 

Wired. 
 
32. What is the number of cameras required and where will they be located? 

Refer to Section B: Add Alternate Components. 
 
33. A equipment rack is listed in the bid requirements but we were also shown an 

existing rack in the job walk. Will a new rack be required or can we use the 
existing? 
New rack is required, as listed in Section B: Add Alternate Components. 

 
34. Is there a site plan available for the ball park? Particularly one showing location of 

existing electoral and data.  
See Exhibits C-1, 2, and 3; and Exhibits D-1, 2, and 3. 

 
35. Are there drawings available for the auxiliary scoreboard? 

See Exhibits B-1, 2, and 3. 
 
36. Are the ad panels on the auxiliary scoreboard to remain?   

See answer #12. 
 
37. Can we make arrangements for a survey of the existing scoreboards and structure 

prior to the bid due date?   
No. 

 
38. What audio integration is required?  

2-channel line level input/output. 
 
39. We have several questions in regards to the CMS solution: 
 

a. What images are going to be displayed on the board at various times? i.e. 
before, during, and after games and at special events. 
Advertising will be displayed on the video boards during most phases of the 
game, meanwhile pictures or video of players may be displayed, along with 
the ball/strike counts, etc.  It is expected that the images will be fluid and 
able to be programmed and adjusted throughout the game and other event 
uses. 

 
b.  What is the specified CMS for? 

The CMS is needed to program sections of the boards for advertising, 
player stats., information, videos, as well as the ball/strike counts.  It is also 
necessary to utilize the board as a whole for video of concerts or other field 
uses. 



 
c.  Why a cloud based CMS? 

Cloud based solutions allow for more flexibility in storage space, and do not 
require hardware upgrades and replacements.  Long-term, they are 
believed to be more cost efficient. 

 
d.  What type of content do you intend to manage?   

In general terms, graphics and video including .jpeg and .avi.  
 
40. How many zones will be required for each video board? 

Each board must be capable of displaying not less than the current number of 
zones including all static and live sections, currently visible.  The board must also 
be capable of combining any and all zones to allow flexibility in use and advertising 
size.  Main board, not less than five zones, and Auxiliary board, not less than four 
zones. 

 
41. The bid documents specify a CD containing an electronic version of the bid. Since 

most new computers no longer have a CD drive will a USB drive be acceptable? 
USB drive is acceptable. 
 
 
 
 

BIDDER MUST ACKNOWLEDGE THIS AMENDMENT BY SIGNING BELOW AND 
ATTACHING THE SIGNED AMENDMENT  TO THE BID FORM: 
 
Company Name ______________________________________ 
 
Contact Person _______________________________________ 
 
Signature ____________________________________________ 
 
Date _________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Bids Due – Promptly by 2:00 P.M., Thursday, January 24, 2019, City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
----------------------------------City of Stockton Use Only below this line--------------------------------- 

Addendum acknowledged and signed?  _________(Procurement Specialist’s initials) 


